
 
Board of Education 
Bill Bruins, President 

Jennie Patrykus, Clerk 
Ronald Paul, Vice-President 

Kim Pokorny, Member 
Lori Van Buren, Member 

Milan Vande Zande, Treasurer 
Dylan Weber, Member 

 
District Level Administration 

Brad Bille, Facilities Supervisor 
Wendi Dawson, Director of Special Education 

Steven Hill, District Administrator 
Carrie Hintze, Director of Business Services 

Adam Holzman, Director of Information Technology 
Steve Lenz, Director of Activities & Community Partnerships 

Rob Meyer, Director of Teaching & Learning 

Education Service Center 
950 Wilcox Street 

Waupun, WI   53963 

WAUPUN AREA 

 SCHOOL DISTRICT 

October 28, 2019 6:00 p.m. 
Waupun High School 

Professional Development - Room B120 
801 E. Lincoln Street 
Waupun, WI 53963 

 

 
Building Administrators 

Sarah Leisses, Assistant Principal, Rock River Intermediate School 
Melinda Myers, Principal, Rock River Intermediate School 
Wendy Sallam, Principal, Meadow View Primary School 

Julie Schmidt, Principal, SAGES Charter School 
Erin Siedschlag, Principal, Junior/Senior High School 

Tiffany Sponholz, Assistant Principal, Senior High School 
Lucas Thuecks, Assistant Principal, Junior High School 

 
Phone: 920-324-9341 

Fax: 920-324-2630 

 Vision:  A catalyst for innovation resulting in student success.  

Mission: Acting together to maximize every student’s potential.  

Annual Meeting 
2019-2020 

Budget Presentation and Hearing 



Published By: 
Waupun Area School District 

Education Service Center 
950 Wilcox Street 
Waupun, WI 53963 

October 2018 

Letter from the District Administrator 1 

Annual Meeting Notice 2 

Agenda 2 

Suggested Motions 3 

Minutes 4 

Treasurer’s Report 5 

2019- 2020 Budget 6-10 

Levy 10-Year History 10 

Enrollment History & Open-Enrollment History 11 

Building Program Fund (Fund 49) 12 

Energy Exemption Bonds (Fund 49) 12 

Debt Service Summary (Funds 38 and 39) 12 

Revenue Limit Worksheet 13 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 



Executive Summary  

To the Communities of the Waupun Area School District, 
 

The Waupun Area School District has committed itself to the mission that 
we are acting together to maximize every student’s potential.  We will al-
ways work diligently to fulfill our vision as a catalyst for innovation resulting 
in student success.  
 

The community’s 2016 referendum commitment to district improvements 
has been completed. Your community public school district offers modern 
learning spaces designed for all students and staff. Staff continue their pur-
suit to best meet the needs of the nearly 2,000 students that enter our build-
ings.  We continue to improve and look forward to the wonderful opportuni-
ties our committed staff offers to our wonderful learners.   
 

The Waupun Area School District is in our third year of a three-year strate-
gic plan Goals 2020. 

 Quality Teaching & Learning: WASD will expect continual growth of 
all students by meeting their academic, social, and emotional learning 
needs. 
 Communication & Community Engagement: WASD will engage with 
parents, businesses, and the community at large to create strong part-
nerships and experiences for our students. 
 Facilities & Operations: WASD will work with students, staff, and 
parents to create learning environments that promote collaboration 
while encouraging innovation to meet individual needs. 
 Staff Engagement & Wellness: WASD will promote a healthy, sup-
portive work environment to meet the needs of all staff. 

 

These pillars prioritize the financial resources in the budget being presented 
to our communities for the 2019-2020 school year in order for our students 
to maximize their potential. 
 

The district will partake in a process to generate our key performance indi-
cators. This work will move the district in a continuous improvement model 
that will generate positive outcomes for all.  
 

The WASD staff is truly exceptional. Our elementary schools held a sum-
mer reading and book offering program that put books in our learner’s 
hands to read all summer. We have over thirty students participating in 
Youth Apprenticeship programs with our community partners. A community 
and district group will be reviewing items of interest to move our district for-
ward in our quest for the safety and security of our district students and 
staff.  Our community partnerships continue to blossom and we are commit-
ted to being strong partners with this wonderful community. 
 

In your service, 
 
 
 
 
 

Steven K. Hill 

The Waupun 

Area School 

District is 

Dedicated to the 

Success of Each 

Student 

Vision: 
 

A catalyst for            
innovation resulting 
in student success. 

 
Mission: 

Acting together to  
maximize every  

student’s potential. 

Page 1 

Steven K. Hill 
District  

Administrator 



 

Waupun Area School District 
Annual District Meeting Notice 

Section 120.08(1) 
Notice is hereby given to qualified electors of the Waupun Area School District, that the Annual Meeting of said District for the 
transaction of business, will be held at the Waupun Area Junior Senior High School in the Professional Development Room #B120  
located at 801 E. Lincoln St., Waupun, WI on the 28th day of October 2019, at 6:00 p.m.  
Submitted by: 
/S/ Jennie B. Patrykus, Board of Education Clerk          
October 15, 2019 
 
Publish: Daily Citizen:  10/18/19 & 10/25/19 
Posted:  District buildings, libraries, website 

 
 

AGENDA 
Waupun Area School District 

Board of Education 
Annual Meeting Agenda 

Monday, October 28, 2019 
 
The Waupun Area School District Board of Education Annual Business Meeting will be held on October 28, 2019, at 6:00 
p.m. in the Professional Development Room #B120 located at the Waupun High School, 801 E. Lincoln St., Waupun, WI. 
 
1. 6:00 p.m. Opening Items 
1.1 Call to Order - Ron Paul, Acting-President 
1.2 Pledge of Allegiance 
1.3 Declaration of Public Notice 
 
2. Introductions - School Board and Administration 
 
3. Election of Chairperson 
3.1 Election of the Chairperson of the Meeting 
 
4. Announcement of the availability of the Minutes from the 2018 Annual Meeting 
 
5. District Reports 
5.1 President's Report - Ron Paul, Acting-President 
5.2 District Administrator's Report - Steven Hill 
5.3 Treasurer's Report - Milan Vande Zande 
 
6. Public Hearing on the School District Budget 
6.1 2019-2020 Budget Hearing - Carrie Hintze 
 
7. Resolutions 
7.1 Adoption of Tax Levy 
7.2 Authorization of Salaries for School Board Members 
7.3 Reimbursement of School Board Member Expenses 
7.4 Authorize the School Board to set the 2020 Annual Meeting Date 
 
8. Other New Business 
 
9. Adjournment 
9.1 Consider a motion to adjourn 
 
Upon request to the District Administrator, submitted twenty-four (24) hours in advance, the district shall make        
reasonable accommodation including the provision of informational material in an alternative format for a disabled    
person to be able to attend this meeting. 
 
/S/ 
Jennie B. Patrykus, Clerk 
Board of Education 

Page 2 



                                                              SUGGESTED MOTIONS 
 
 

3.1 Election of Chairperson of the Meeting 
I, ____________________ of (address) elect ______________ as chairperson for the 2019-2020 Annual 
Meeting.  

 Seconded by __________________, of (address). 

 
RESOLUTIONS:  

7.1 Adoption of Tax Levy 

I, ___________________, of (address) BE IT RESOLVED by the electors of the Waupun Area School Dis-
trict, pursuant to Section 120.10(8) of the Wisconsin Statutes, that the tax levy for the 2019-2020 school 
year shall be set at $6,611,239 for the General Fund, $502,241 for the Non-Referendum Debt Service Fund, 
$2,552,581 for the Referendum Debt Service Fund, and $240,000 for the Community Service Fund for a 
combined fund total levy of $9,906,061. 
 
 Seconded by ____________________, of (address).  
 
7.2 Authorization of Salaries for School Board Members  

I, ___________________, of (address) BE IT RESOLVED by the electors of the Waupun Area School Dis-
trict, pursuant to Section 120.10(14) of the Wisconsin Statutes, that each member of the Board of Education 
be paid for the monthly Business Meeting attended at a rate of $______________ and each Special Meeting 
attended at a rate of $______________. 
 

(The rate was $60 for each regular, special, and committee meeting, assignment as authorized by the Board 
President. It is now recommended to be $180 for each monthly Business Meeting attended and $60 for each 
Special Meeting attended.) 

 Seconded by _________________, of (address). 
 

I, ___________________, of (address) BE IT RESOLVED by the electors of the Waupun Area School District 
that the following rate be adopted for attendance at events while representing the school 
board:  $__________ per (hour, half or full day) attendance.  In the case of virtual attendance via record-
ings or webinars viewed, that virtual attendee shall be paid $___________________ for 8 hours of time 
spent on recordings/webinars. 

 
(The present rate is $45 per half day, $90 per full day when attending meetings on behalf of the Dis-
trict.  Proposing $90 per virtual attendance of WASB State Education Convention in the amount of 8 hours of 
recordings/webinars instead of attending in-person.)  Seconded by _________________, of (address). 
 

7.3 Reimbursement of School Board Member Expenses 

I, ____________________, of (address) BE IT RESOLVED by the electors of the Waupun Area School Dis-
trict, that the Board members be paid the actual and necessary expenses of a Board Member when traveling 
outside the District in the performance of their duties in relation to Wisconsin Association of School Boards 
(WASB) sponsored events.   

 Seconded by _________________, of (address). 
 

7.4 Authorize the School Board to set the 2020 Annual Meeting Date  

I, ____________________, of (address) BE IT RESOLVED by the electors of the Waupun Area School Dis-
trict, pursuant to Section §120.08(1)(a) of the Wisconsin Statutes, that the School Board of said District be 
and is hereby authorized to set the date of the next annual meeting to _________________________.  
(October 26, 2020 has been suggested)  

 Seconded by _________________, of (address). 

Page 3 



Waupun Area School District 
Board of EducaƟon 
Annual MeeƟng Minutes 
Monday, October 29, 2018 
 
1. 6:00 p.m. Opening Items 
1.1 Call to Order ‐ Bill Bruins, President 
The meeƟng convened at 6:02 p.m. 
Members of the resident electors were present. 
Board Members Present:  Bill Bruins, Ron Paul, Jennie Patrykus, Dylan Weber, Milan Vande Zande, Kim Pokorny, Stephen Chené 
 
2. IntroducƟons ‐ School Board and AdministraƟon 
 
3. ElecƟon of Chairperson 
3.1 ElecƟon of the Chairperson of the MeeƟng 
Jennie Patrykus of 631 Hoard Road, Waupun, WI  53963 nominated Bill Bruins as chairperson for the 2018‐2019 Annual MeeƟng. Seconded by Milan Vande Zande, of 
N2984 County Road M, Waupun, WI  53963.  MoƟon carried unanimously.  Bruins accepted. 
 
4. Announcement of the availability of the Minutes from the 2017 Annual MeeƟng.  Weber moƟoned to approve the minutes.  Seconded by Pokorny.  MoƟon carried 
unanimously. 
 
5. District Reports 
5.2 District Administrator's Report ‐ Steve Hill highlighted stand‐outs via picture inclusions in the Annual MeeƟng Booklet.  Many academic and other celebraƟons since 
he started with the District.  Warrior InnovaƟon Center/FAB Lab is another celebraƟon, set for Open House on November 7, 2018.  Doug Disch and the CommunicaƟon 
Group highlighƟng and geƫng the word out to share the wonderful things going on in our District.  SAGES ‐ Forest, Partnerships with local businesses.  Having the Japa‐
nese visit again.  1:1 iniƟaƟve is evident that students are the priority. 
 
6. Public Hearing on the School District Budget 
 
7. ResoluƟons 
7.1 AdopƟon of Tax Levy 
Milan Vande Zande, of N2984 County Road M, Waupun, WI  53963 BE IT RESOLVED by the electors of the Waupun Area School District, pursuant to SecƟon 120.10(8) of 
the Wisconsin Statutes, that the tax levy for the 2018‐2019 school year shall be set at $6,749,444 for the General Fund, $482,417 for the Non‐Referendum Debt Service 
Fund, $2,558,656 for the Referendum Debt Service Fund, and $190,000 for the Community Service Fund for a combined fund total levy of $9,980,517. Seconded by Jen‐
nie Patrykus, of 631 Hoard Road, Waupun, WI  53963.  MoƟon carried unanimously. 
7.2 AuthorizaƟon of Salaries for School Board Members 
Wendi Dawson, of N4189 Amity Road, Brandon, WI  53919 BE IT RESOLVED by the electors of the Waupun Area School District, pursuant to SecƟon 120.10(14) of the 
Wisconsin Statutes, that the following salaries be adopted for the members of the Board of EducaƟon:  $60 per meeƟng regular and commiƩee meeƟngs authorized by 
the Board President.  The rate for district related events is $45 per half‐day and 90 per full‐day, when aƩending on behalf of the district. Seconded by Marilyn Klobuchar, 
of 29 Carrington Street, Waupun, WI  53963.  MoƟon carried unanimously. 
7.3 Reimbursement of School Board Member Expenses 
Brad Bille, of 100 South State Street, Waupun, WI  53963 BE IT RESOLVED by the electors of the Waupun Area School District, that the Board members be paid the actual 
and necessary expenses of a Board Member when traveling outside the District in the performance of their duƟes in relaƟon to Wisconsin AssociaƟon of School Boards 
(WASB) sponsored events. Seconded by Wendi Dawson, of N4189 Amity Road, Brandon, WI  53919. 
7.4 Authorize the School Board to set the 2019 Annual MeeƟng Date 
Ron Paul, of N10773 Highway A, Fox Lake, WI  53933 BE IT RESOLVED by the electors of the Waupun Area School District, pursuant to SecƟon §120.08(1)(a) of the Wis‐
consin Statutes, that the School Board of said District be and is hereby authorized to set the date of the next annual meeƟng to October 28, 2019.  Seconded by Jennie 
Patrykus, of 631 Hoard Road, Waupun, WI 53963. 
 
8. Other New Business ‐ None 
 
9. Adjournment 
9.1 Consider a moƟon to adjourn 
Patrykus moƟoned to adjourn the meeƟng at 6:33 p.m. Paul seconded. (15‐0‐0) 
 
Respecƞully submiƩed, 
Grace J Jakubos 
School Board Secretary 

Minutes 

Page 4 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                                                                                                        Treasurer’s Report  

Page 5 

 



WAUPUN AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Budget (Page 1) 

Page 6 

GENERAL  FUND (FUND 10)  Audited  
2017-18 

Unaudited  
2018-19 

Budget  
2019-20 

Beginning Fund Balance (Account 930 000) 3,596,794 4,170,467 4,625,677 
Ending Fund Balance, Nonspendable (Acct. 935 000) 0 0 0 
Ending Fund Balance, Restricted (Acct. 936 000) 0 3,952 0 
Ending Fund Balance, Committed (Acct. 937 000) 0 0 0 
Ending Fund Balance, Assigned (Acct. 938 000) 0 0 0 
Ending Fund Balance, Unassigned (Acct. 939 000) 4,170,467 4,621,725 4,114,686 
TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE (ACCT. 930 000) 4,170,467 4,625,677 4,114,686 

REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES       
100 Transfers-in 0 0 0 

Local Sources 
210 Taxes 6,333,503 6,766,664 6,628,239 
240 Payments for Services 0 0 0 
260 Non-Capital Sales 18,253 11,909 9,230 
270 School Activity Income 37,307 28,990 25,530 
280 Interest on Investments 22,637 54,607 48,000 

290 Other Revenue, Local Sources 116,829 196,239 172,507 

Subtotal Local Sources 6,528,528 7,058,409 6,883,506 

Other School Districts Within Wisconsin 
310 Transit of Aids 0 0 0 
340 Payments for Services 368,338 447,225 590,757 
380 Medical Service Reimbursements 0 0 0 

390 Other Inter-district, Within Wisconsin 0 0 0 

Subtotal Other School Districts within Wisconsin 368,338 447,225 590,757 

Other School Districts Outside Wisconsin 
440 Payments for Services 0 0 0 

490 Other Inter-district, Outside Wisconsin 0 0 0 

Subtotal Other School Districts Outside Wisconsin 0 0 0 

Intermediate Sources  
510 Transit of Aids 9,773 10,442 9,340 
530 Payments for Services from CCDEB 0 0 0 
540 Payments for Services from CESA 0 0 0 
580 Medical Services Reimbursement 0 0 0 

590 Other Intermediate Sources 2,500 0 0 

Subtotal Intermediate Sources 12,273 10,442 9,340 

State Sources  
610 State Aid -- Categorical 128,491 132,761 140,000 
620 State Aid -- General 12,555,277 12,762,248 13,735,424 
630 DPI Special Project Grants 24,266 114,895 81,390 
640 Payments for Services 0 0 0 

650 Student Achievement Guarantee in Education (SAGE 
Grant) 0 0 0 
660 Other State Revenue Through Local Units 43,586 39,433 39,000 

690 Other Revenue 922,252 1,630,309 1,606,851 

Subtotal State Sources 13,673,872 14,679,646 15,602,665 

Federal Sources  
710 Federal Aid - Categorical 0 0 0 
720 Impact Aid 0 0 0 
730 DPI Special Project Grants 359,142 309,103 327,958 
750 IASA Grants 190,667 194,730 201,009 
760 JTPA 0 0 0 
770 Other Federal Revenue Through Local Units 0 0 0 
780 Other Federal Revenue Through State 22,380 21,770 20,500 

790 Other Federal Revenue - Direct 0 0 0 
Subtotal Federal Sources 572,188 525,603 549,467 



 
 
 
 
   
 

Page 7 

Budget Cont’d (Page 2) 

GENERAL  FUND (FUND 10) - Cont'd Audited  
2017-18 

Unaudited  
2018-19 

Budget  
2019-20 

Other Financing Sources  
850 Reorganization Settlement 0 0 0 
860 Compensation, Fixed Assets 6,094 10,497 4,000 
870 Long-Term Obligations 0 0 0 
Subtotal Other Financing Sources 6,094 10,497 4,000 

Other Revenues  
960 Adjustments 0 26 26 
970 Refund of Disbursement 55,418 136,443 48,000 
980 Medical Service Reimbursement 0 0 0 
990 Miscellaneous 12,828 6,467 4,500 
Subtotal Other Revenues 68,246 142,936 52,526 
TOTAL REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 21,229,538 22,874,758 23,692,261 
EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES       

Instruction  
110 000  Undifferentiated Curriculum 4,221,285 4,334,856 4,699,312 
120 000  Regular Curriculum 3,405,557 3,409,336 3,617,499 
130 000  Vocational Curriculum 784,210 878,965 946,004 
140 000  Physical Curriculum 489,938 595,800 583,759 
160 000  Co-Curricular Activities 306,018 384,997 401,046 
170 000  Other Special Needs 89,553 106,984 150,197 
Subtotal Instruction 9,296,562 9,710,938 10,397,817 

Support Sources  
210 000  Pupil Services 968,665 892,032 1,036,826 
220 000  Instructional Staff Services 972,789 1,388,800 1,657,040 
230 000  General Administration 434,895 442,235 428,857 
240 000  School Building Administration 1,124,318 1,142,962 1,221,803 
250 000  Business Administration 2,608,283 3,174,013 3,088,140 
260 000  Central Services 904,262 222,524 175,945 
270 000  Insurance & Judgments 158,466 192,319 171,520 
280 000  Debt Services 22,472 10,608 10,608 
290 000  Other Support Services 159,494 892,734 1,158,802 
Subtotal Support Sources 7,353,643 8,358,227 8,949,541 

Non-Program Transactions  
410 000  Inter-fund Transfers 2,029,572 2,080,388 2,204,723 
430 000  Instructional Service Payments 1,941,630 2,260,595 2,651,171 
490 000  Other Non-Program Transactions 34,459 9,400 0 
Subtotal Non-Program Transactions 4,005,660 4,350,383 4,855,894 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES 20,655,865 22,419,548 24,203,252 

    
    

SPECIAL PROJECT FUNDS (FUNDS 21, 23, 29)        
900 000 Beginning Fund Balance 135,202 147,205 324,518 
900 000 Ending Fund Balance 147,205 324,518 411,627 
REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 14,580 190,109 190,109 
100 000 Instruction 607 2,800 5,000 
200 000 Support Services 1,970 4,921 98,000 
400 000 Non-Program Transactions 0 5,075 0 
TOTAL EXPENDTURES & OTHER FINANCING USES 2,577 12,796 103,000 



 

 

Page 8 

Budget Cont’d (Page 3) 

SPECIAL EDUCATION FUND (FUND 27)  Audited  
2017-18 

Unaudited  
2018-19 

Budget  
2019-20 

900 000 Beginning Fund Balance 0 0 0 
900 000 Ending Fund Balance 0 0 0 
REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES       
100 Transfers-in 2,029,572 2,080,388 2,204,723 
Local Sources 
240 Payments for Services 0 0 0 
260 Non-Capital Sales 0 0 0 
270 School Activity Income 0 0 0 
290 Other Revenue, Local Sources 0 3,030 3,030 
Subtotal Local Sources 0 3,030 3,030 

Other School Districts Within Wisconsin 
310 Transit of Aids 16,945 0 0 
340 Payments for Services 0 18,155 18,155 
380 Medical Service Reimbursements 0 0 0 
390 Other Inter-district, Within Wisconsin 1,160 0 0 
Subtotal Other School Districts within Wisconsin 18,105 18,155 18,155 

Other School Districts Outside Wisconsin 
440 Payments for Services 0 0 0 
490 Other Inter-district, Outside Wisconsin 0 0 0 
Subtotal Other School Districts Outside Wisconsin 0 0 0 

Intermediate Sources  
510 Transit of Aids 21,767 24,461 24,461 
530 Payments for Services from CCDEB 0 0 0 
540 Payments for Services from CESA 0 0 0 
580 Medical Services Reimbursement 0 0 0 
590 Other Intermediate Sources 0 0 0 
Subtotal Intermediate Sources 21,767 24,461 24,461 

State Sources  
610 State Aid -- Categorical 612,517 650,135 664,530 
620 State Aid -- General 0 0 0 
630 DPI Special Project Grants 0 0 28,800 
640 Payments for Services 0 0 0 
650 Achievement Gap Reduction (AGR grant) 0 0 0 
690 Other Revenue 5,000 6,000 6,000 
Subtotal State Sources 617,517 656,135 699,330 

Federal Sources  
710 Federal Aid - Categorical 0 0 0 
730 DPI Special Project Grants 271,333 259,936 359,282 
750 IASA Grants 0 0 0 
760 JTPA 0 0 0 
770 Other Federal Revenue Through Local Units 0 0 0 
780 Other Federal Revenue Through State 111,919 148,852 148,852 
790 Other Federal Revenue - Direct 0 0 0 
Subtotal Federal Sources 383,252 408,788 508,134 
Other Financing Sources    0 0 
860 Compensation, Fixed Assets 0 0 0 
870 Long-Term Obligations 0 0 0 
Subtotal Other Financing Sources 0 0 0 

Other Revenues  
960 Adjustments 0 0 0 
970 Refund of Disbursement 0 0 0 
990 Miscellaneous 0 0 0 
Subtotal Other Revenues 0 0 0 
TOTAL REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 3,070,213 3,190,957 3,457,833 



 
 
   
 

 

Page 9 

Budget Cont’d (Page 4) 
EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES       

Instruction  
110 000  Undifferentiated Curriculum 0 0 0 
120 000  Regular Curriculum 0 0 0 
130 000  Vocational Curriculum 0 0 0 
140 000  Physical Curriculum 0 0 0 
150 000 Special Education Curriculum 2,109,479 2,159,600 2,290,046 
160 000  Co-Curricular Activities 0 0 0 
170 000  Other Special Needs 0 0 0 
Subtotal Instruction 2,109,479 2,159,600 2,290,046 

Support Sources  
210 000  Pupil Services 387,572 396,313 475,516 
220 000  Instructional Staff Services 209,260 213,613 238,493 
230 000  General Administration 1,460 0 0 
240 000  School Building Administration 0 0 0 
250 000  Business Administration 199,628 224,653 257,000 
260 000  Central Services 47 0 0 
270 000  Insurance & Judgments 0 0 0 
280 000  Debt Services 0 0 0 
290 000  Other Support Services 0 0 0 
Subtotal Support Sources 797,967 834,579 971,009 

Non-Program Transactions  
410 000  Inter-fund Transfers 0 0 0 
430 000  Instructional Service Payments 162,767 196,778 196,778 
490 000  Other Non-Program Transactions 0 0 0 
Subtotal Non-Program Transactions 162,767 196,778 196,778 
TOTAL EXPENDTURES & OTHER FINANCING USES 3,070,213 3,190,957 3,457,833 
DEBT SERVICE FUND (FUNDS 38, 39)        

900 000  Beginning Fund Balance 147,084 1,136,025 798,458 
900 000  ENDING FUND BALANCES 1,136,025 798,458 790,779 
TOTAL REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 31,031,688 3,057,655 3,071,722 
281 000  Long-Term Capital Debt 3,853,163 3,395,222 3,079,401 
282 000  Refinancing 26,189,583 0 0 
283 000  Operational Debt 0 0 0 
285 000  Post Employment Benefit Debt 0 0 0 
289 000  Other Long-Term General Obligation Debt 0 0 0 
400 000  Non-Program Transactions 0 0 0 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES 30,042,747 3,395,222 3,079,401 
842 000 INDEBTEDNESS, END OF YEAR 40,620,527 38,620,527 36,885,527 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND (FUNDS 41, 46, 48, 49)        
900 000  Beginning Fund Balance 23,643,196 16,983,779 1,824,793 
900 000  Ending Fund Balance 16,983,779 1,824,793 500 
TOTAL REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 11,746,612 325,112 7,400 
100 000 Instructional Services 1,051,501 844,398 97,000 
200 000 Support Services 17,354,528 14,639,700 1,734,693 
300 000 Community Services 0 0 0 
400 000 Non-Program Transactions 0 0 0 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES 18,406,030 15,484,098 1,831,693 
FOOD SERVICE FUND (FUND 50)        
900 000  Beginning Fund Balance 62,058 70,339 70,691 
900 000  ENDING FUND BALANCE 70,339 70,691 75,550 
TOTAL REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 808,767 862,322 862,322 
200 000 Support Services 800,486 861,970 857,463 
400 000 Non-Program Transactions 0 0 0 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES 800,486 861,970 857,463 



 

 

Levy History 

Budget Cont’d (Page 5) 

* The 60 & 70 series funds are "fiduciary" funds.  Presentation of these funds taken out of the adoption format to agree with GASB 34 
requirements  This change also brings the school district adoption format more into conformity with statute 65.90 requirements used 
for other Wisconsin governments which specify that information be presented for governmental and proprietary funds, but does not 
require it for fiduciary funds. 

Page 10 

Calendar Levy Fiscal Year Total Levy Count Equalized Value Mill Rate 

2011 2010-2011 $10,294,709 $959,949,496 $10.72 
2012 2011-2012 $10,066,191 $960,176,518 $10.48 
2013 2012-2013 $10,066,191 $910,308,925 $11.06 
2014 2013-2014 $10,391,791 $909,292,881 $11.43 
2015 2014-2015 $10,387,336 $957,662,516 $10.85 
2016 2015-2016 $10,640,912 $975,414,111 $10.91 
2017 2016-2017 $9,618,278 $966,865,174 $9.95 
2018 2017-2018 $9,717,155 $994,442,719 $9.77 
2019 2018-2019 $9,980,517 $1,031,164,147 $9.68 
2020 2019-2020 $9,906,061 $1,062,045,030 $9.33 

COMMUNITY SERVICE FUND (FUND 80)        

900 000  Beginning Fund Balance 51,263 10,273 24,742 

900 000  ENDING FUND BALANCE 10,273 24,742 18,233 

TOTAL REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 159,540 196,765 241,800 

200 000 Support Services 48,228 46,534 108,469 

300 000 Community Services 152,302 135,762 139,840 

400 000 Non-Program Transactions 0 0 0 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES 200,530 182,296 248,309 

PACKAGE & COOPERATIVE PROGRAM FUND (FUNDS 91, 
93, 99)        

900 000  Beginning Fund Balance 0 0 0 

900 000  ENDING FUND BALANCE 0 0 0 

TOTAL REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 13,996 18,981 0 

100 000 Instruction 0 0 0 

200 000 Support Services 7,328 11,197 0 

400 000 Non-Program Transactions 6,668 7,784 0 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES 13,996 18,981 0 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

                                                                                                                             Open Enrollment History 

Page 11 

                                                                                                                       10-Year Enrollment History 



 
 
 
 

Building Program Fund (Fund 49) 

Energy Exemption Bonds (Fund 49) 

ge 12 

In December 2017 the Board of Education authorized the issuance of bonds to fund additional construction needs that 
would result in long-term energy savings. Specifically included in the listed projects were roofing replacement at the Junior-
Senior High School, building envelope, window, door and lighting upgrades at the Education Service Center and boiler re-
placement at Amity School. Work began on these projects in April 2018 and is slated to be complete by November 2019.  

In November 2016 taxpayers approved a referendum to issue $36,000,000.00 of debt for the purpose of performing repairs, 
additions and renovations to the district's facilities. The district sold $26,000,000.00 of bonds in 2017 and $10,000,000.00 of 
bonds were issued in January 2018. Construction began in the spring of 2017 with the first work being done at the new athletic 
complex at the high school. Over the summer other projects were commenced and the majority of the work was completed in 
fall of 2018. Two projects remained that were mostly completed during the summer of 2019. Those two projects were the gym 
at Rock River Intermediate School and hallway and casement work at Meadow View Primary School. The summary below shows 
the financial resources the district has to work with and the planned spending.  

Debt Service Summary (Funds 38 and 39) Referendum Approved 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Revenue Limit Worksheet 

Page 13 




